
*In accordance with GVR Bylaws, all meetings of the Board at which official business of The Corporation is transacted, with the exception of meetings limited to personnel and/or legal matters, shall be open to all members 
of The Corporation. An executive session “placeholder” is added to each Regular Meeting Board agenda should the Board have personnel and/or legal matters to address. Meetings shall be governed by Roberts Rules of Order 
unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors. 

 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, September 30, 2020 2pm 

ELECTRONIC MEETING 
 
 

 

Directors:  Don Weaver (President), Mike Zelenak (Vice President), Beverly Tobiason (Secretary), 
Donna Coon (Treasurer), Mark Kelley (Assistant Secretary), Randy Howard (Assistant Treasurer), Christine 
Gallegos, Bev Lawless, Mark McIntosh, Charlie Sieck, Sandra Thornton, Gail Vanderhoof,  
Jen Morningstar (non-voting) 

 

 
 
 

  Agenda Topic  Director Exhibit Action 

1.  Call to Order / Quorum Weaver   

2.  Adopt Agenda Weaver X X 

3. Consent Calendar 
A. August 26, 2020 Minutes 
B. September 16, 2020 Minutes 
C. August 2020 Financial Statements 

Weaver  
X 
X 
X 

X 

4. Policy Governance 
1. Policy Governance Manual verbiage change 

Tobiason 
 

 
X 

 
X 

5. Committee Reports 
A. Fiscal Affairs 

1. Administrative Offices Buildout 
2. Reserve Funding 

B. Investments 
1. Investment Policy Update 

C. Board Affairs 
1. CPM language changes 

a. Facility Use 
b. Indemnification 
c. Composition of Committees 
d. CPM Changes – Legal Review 

D. Planning & Evaluation 
E. Nominations & Elections 

 
Coon 

 
 

Lawless 
 

Gallegos 
 
 
 
 
 

Howard 
McIntosh 

 

 
 

X 
X 
 

X 
 
 

X 
X 
X 
X 
 

 
 

X 
X 
 

X 
 
 

X 
X 
X 
X 
 

6.  New Business 
A. Volunteerism 

 
Kelley 

 
X 

 

7. GVR Foundation Report Counter   

8.  Member Comments    

9.  Adjournment   X 

 



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 
GVR Mission Statement: “To provide recreational, social and leisure education opportunities 
that enhance the quality of our members’ lives.” 
 

A regular meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS was held 
Wednesday, August 26, 2020 by teleconference. The President being in the chair and the 
Secretary being present. 
 

Directors Present by Remote: Don Weaver (President), Mike Zelenak (Vice President), 
Beverly Tobiason (Secretary), Donna Coon (Treasurer), Mark Kelley (Assistant Secretary), 

Christine Gallegos, Bev Lawless, Mark McIntosh, Charles Sieck, Sandra Thornton, Jen 
Morningstar (Interim CEO) (non-voting) 
 

Absent: Randy Howard (Assistant Treasurer), Gail Vanderhoof 
 

Visitors: 43 

 
1. Call to Order/Establish Quorum 

President Weaver called the meeting to order at 2:00pm MST. 
Roll was called and a quorum established. 

President Weaver extended condolences to Gail Vanderhoof and Beverly Tobiason on their 
loss of a family member. 
 

2. Adopt Agenda 

MOTION: Zelenak/Seconded. Adopt Agenda as amended. 
Passed: unanimously 
 

3. Consent Calendar 
MOTION: Coon/Seconded. Approve Consent Calendar as presented. 

• July 29, 2020 Minutes 
• July 2020 Financial Statements 

Passed: unanimously 
 

4. Bylaws Committee Update – M. Zelenak 
MOTION: Zelenak/Seconded. Meet in closed session with GVR Attorney Wendy 

Ehrlich to discuss Policy Governance before moving forward with Policy 
Governance in order for the Board to make an informed decision. 

Failed: Yes – 5 (Zelenak, Coon, Gallegos, McIntosh, Lawless); No – 5 
 

5. Policy Governance – B. Tobiason 

A. Consulting Services – GVR Board has approved some additional consulting hours with 
Brown Dog Consulting of up to 40 hours of consulting, primarily around implementation, 
to an upwards of $5,000. 

 

B. Policy Updates: 
1. Initial Ends Interpretation at November 2020 meeting; and Ends Monitoring 

Report as scheduled in March 2021 



 

2 
 

Discussion – changed November to October as no meeting in November. 
 

MOTION: Tobiason/Seconded. Approve Initial Ends Interpretation at 
October 2020 meeting; and Ends Monitoring Report as scheduled in March 

2021. 
Passed: Yes – 6; No – 4 (Lawless, Gallegos, Zelenak, Thornton) 

 

C. EL 2.8 change monitoring schedule from twice per year to once (October) 

MOTION: Tobiason/Seconded. EL 2.8 Change monitoring schedule from twice 
per year to once (October). 

Passed: Yes – 8; No – 2 (Gallegos, Zelenak) 
 

D. Annual Member Survey in November (or with Annual Invoice) 

• Ed Knop has agreed to help with both annual and mini surveys.  
• Education Subcommittee for Policy Governance established with Jerry Humphrey as 

Chair. 
 

E. PG Manual Verbiage Changes 
1. Individual members (when speaking of Board members) to Directors 

MOTION: Tobiason/Seconded. Change “members” (when speaking of Board 
members) to “Directors.” 

Passed: Yes – 8; No – 2 (Gallegos, Zelenak) 
 

2. GVR members to GVR member-owners 

MOTION: Tobiason/Seconded. Change GVR “members” to “member-owners.” 
Passed: Yes – 6; No – 4 (Gallegos, Lawless, McIntosh, Zelenak) 
 

Director Tobiason requested that Directors review the CEO section of the split CPM 
sent to them by Director Lawless and send any feedback to Director Tobiason and Bob 
Northrup within one week. 
 

Director Tobiason gave an overview of Board emails received in the past month from 
66 members. Thank you for hard work from President Weaver. 
 

6. Committee Reports 
A. Board Affairs – C. Gallegos, Chair 

1. Revisions to the Board of Directors Code of Conduct and Acceptance of Board Code of 
Conduct Enforcement Procedures 
 

MOTION: Gallegos/Seconded. Accept proposed changes to the Board of 
Directors Code of Conduct and accept the Board Code of Conduct 
Enforcement Procedures, as amended, adding the change to 4.b) Removal 

from office, if the Director is an officer, per A.R.S. §10-3843(B). 
Passed: Yes – 7; No – 2 (Thornton, Sieck); Abstain – 1 (Kelley) 
 

B. Fiscal Affairs – D. Coon, Chair 
Chair Coon reported for Fiscal Affairs Committee. In discussion it was asked if Interim 

CEO Morningstar could find out how much revenue is realized for programs from outside 
the membership. 

 

C. Planning & Evaluation – D. Coon (for R. Howard, Chair) 
1(a). Pickleball Center Shade Structure (funded by Pickleball Club) 



 

3 
 

 

MOTION: Coon/Seconded. Approve the Pickleball Club request to erect a 
29’ by 26’ shade structure at the GVR Pickleball Center with installation by 

a licensed contractor, and funding by the GVR Pickleball Club in the amount 
of $17,324.73, with consideration of reimbursement by GVR, to be 

completed no later than December 31, 2021. 
Passed: Yes – 9; No – 1 (Kelley) 

 

1(b). Pickleball Club Donor Wall – Gina Rowsam and Tim Stewart of the PBC joined the 
meeting and presented their plan to erect a donor wall at the Pickleball Center at 
the club’s expense. 

 

MOTION: Coon/Seconded. The GVR Board of Directors approves the use of 
the East Wall of the Pickleball Center building for the mounting of the 

donor wall sculpture by the Pickleball Club. 
Passed: unanimously 

 

2. WSM Preliminary Design Proposal for West Center Wood Shop Expansion – WSM 
has presented a quote of $12,400 for a Schematic Design Study of 2 options for the 

Wood Shop expansion. The Wood Shop has indicated that they will donate $4,000 
toward the expense of the study. 

 

MOTION: Coon/Seconded. Approve the expenditure of $8,400 for WSM 
Schematic Design Study for Wood Shop expansion with funding source to 
be determined by the Fiscal Affairs Committee. 

Motion tabled following discussion. 
 

D. Investments – B. Lawless, Chair 

Chair Lawless reported for the Investments Committee and presented the July 2020 
investment report. 

 

E. Nominations & Elections – M. McIntosh, Chair 
Chair McIntosh reported for the Nominations & Elections Committee. 

 

F. CEO Search Committee – D. Weaver (for R. Howard, Chair) 
President Weaver reported for the CEO Search Committee - 35 applications received to 
date. The Committee has determined to grant two applicants a preliminary interview. 

Other applications are in the process of review, which may produce other applicants to be 
interviewed. 

 

7. New Business – none 
 

8. GVR Foundation Report – Jim Counter 

President Counter reported: 
• GVRF working on updates to the RetireArizona website and determining future of 

website and how to support it. 
• GVR/GVRF Ad Hoc Committee to meet before next GVR Board meeting to discuss 

Resource Sharing Agreement. 

• Working on 2021 Foundation Games Pickleball Tournament as a fundraiser for GVRF 
and Greater Green Valley Community Foundation (GGVCF). Received GVR and Pima 

County approvals. 



 

4 
 

• GVRF requests GVR to complete a Request for Funding (grant application) in order 
for the Foundation to apply to Freeport-McMoRan Foundation on GVR’s behalf for a 

$10,000 grant to help with PPE equipment due to the COVID pandemic. 
 

MOTION: Weaver/Seconded. GVR Board requests GVR Foundation to apply for a 

$10,000 grant for PPE equipment from Freeport-McMoRan Foundation on GVR’s 
behalf. 
Passed: unanimously 

 

9. Pickleball Center Naming – President Weaver 
Several past GVR Presidents are planning an event to honor former GVR CEO Kent 

Blumenthal in October 2020. They requested the GVR Board consider naming the 
Pickleball Complex after Dr. Blumenthal, which the GVR Board approved this naming in 

July 2020. Dr. Blumenthal agreed to accept this honor. GVR Attorney Wendy Ehrlich will 
develop a waiver for Dr. Blumenthal to sign indicating his agreement. 

 

10. Policy Governance 3.1 – C. Sieck 
Director Sieck reminded all that at each meeting a member will evaluate the meeting’s 
adhering to Policy Governance guidelines. Director Sieck feels that a great job was done by 

the Board this month and Interim CEO Morningstar concurred. President Weaver asked that 
B. Tobiason monitor next month’s meeting to which she agreed. 

 

11. Member Comments – 8 
 

12. Adjournment 

MOTION: Zelenak/Seconded. Adjourn meeting at 4:20pm MST. 
Passed: unanimously 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
GVR Mission Statement: “To provide recreational, social and leisure education 

opportunities that enhance the quality of our members’ lives.” 
 

 

A special meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS was held 

Wednesday, September 16, 2020 by teleconference. The President being in the chair and 

the Secretary being present. 

 

Directors Present by Remote: Don Weaver (President), Mike Zelenak (Vice President), 

Beverly Tobiason (Secretary), Donna Coon (Treasurer), Mark Kelley (Assistant Secretary), 

Christine Gallegos, Bev Lawless, Mark McIntosh, Charles Sieck, Sandra Thornton, Gail 

Vanderhoof, Jen Morningstar (Interim CEO – non-voting) 

 

Absent: Randy Howard (Assistant Treasurer) 

 

Visitors:  11 

 

1. Call to Order/Establish Quorum 

President Weaver called the meeting to order at 2:04pm MST. 

Roll was called and a quorum established. 

 

2. Adopt Agenda 

 

MOTION: Coon/seconded. Adopt Agenda as presented. 

Passed: unanimously 

 

3. New Business 

A. Release Information and Decision from Meeting in Executive Session 

Concerning Naming of GVR Pickleball Complex 

 

MOTION: Zelenak/seconded. Name the GVR Pickleball Complex after Kent J. 

Blumenthal. Discussion followed. 

Passed: Yes – 7; No – 4 (Kelley, Sieck, Thornton, Vanderhoof) 

 

4. Member Comments – 4 (read and responded to) 

 

5. Adjournment 

 

MOTION: Coon/seconded. Adjourn meeting at 2:33pm MST. 

Passed: unanimously 

 

















 
 

Board of Directors 

September 30, 2020 
 

EXHIBIT 

 
Recommendation for Change to Policy Governance Manual 

 

 

 

At the August 26, 2020 meeting the board approved several changes in the Policy Governance 

Manual. 

 

One of the approved verbiage changes was “GVR members” to “GVR member-owners”.  

 

Arizona statutes declare members of non-profit organizations are not shareholders or owners. 

Based on this information and for better clarity, the Policy Governance Committee 

recommends the term be changed from “GVR member-owners” to “GVR homeowner 

members.” 

 

MOTION: In Policy Governance Manual, change all instances of GVR member-owners to GVR 

homeowner members. 



 

 
 

Board of Directors 

September 30, 2020 

 

EXHIBIT 

 
 

Fiscal Affairs Committee – Administrative Office Buildout Update 

 

 

The final build out of the Administration Offices is nearing completion. This project includes the 

addition of 6 offices for staff and a staff conference room. The buildout is in the area vacated by 

the Facilities Maintenance staff when they relocated to the Facilities Maintenance Building in 

2017. The 2020 Non Reserve Capital budget contained $65,000 for the build out. This amount 

also included improvements to the full building air conditioning and air quality systems. 

Additional funding of $20,000 has been approved by the Fiscal Affairs Committee to complete 

this project. Final items include: flooring, plastering, painting, doors, trim. 

 

MOTION: Allocate up to $20,000 from 2020 NonReserve Capital to complete the 

buildout of the Administration Office. 



 
 

Board of Directors 

September 30, 2020 

 

EXHIBIT 

 
Fiscal Affairs Committee - Reserve funding changes 

 

GVR makes an annual deposit to the Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Reserve. This 

Reserve fund is used for maintenance of our facilities over the next 30 years. Each year, before 

the end of February, GVR deposits this Annual Reserve Contribution into the MRR fund. 

 

Currently the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) requires that our Annual Reserve Contribution 

achieves a fund balance of between 85% and 100%. According to our Reserve Study provider 

(Browning Reserve Group) the percent funded is not a good measure of adequacy. They state a 

well-funded community is one where the yearly increases to the contribution are in the range of 

the component inflation factor (currently 4% for GVR).  

 

Based on this advice, the Fiscal Affairs Committee is recommending that the Corporate Policy 

Manual eliminate the statements requiring an annual fund balance no less than 85% and no 

greater than 100%.  They would be replaced by the statements in red (below): 

 

 

*Section V. Fiscal/Accounting  

  

Subsection 2, Item B – Reserve Study Policy  
  

There are three (3) types of Reserve Studies:  

1. Full Reserve Study Baseline, vendor evaluates all facilities, equipment and 

infrastructure  

2. Reserve Study with no onsite visit (NOV)_GVR updates Component Inventory with 

changes  

3. Reserve Study with an onsite visit (WOV)_Vendor reevaluates Component Inventory & 

updates  
  

During the third quarter of the current budget year GVR staff and the Fiscal Affairs 

Committee shall recommend and the Board shall approve a reserve study provider and 

the type of reserve study to be performed during the first quarter of the next budget 

year.  
  

During the first quarter of each budget year, GVR shall ensure a Reserve Study is 

performed by a qualified, reputable Reserve Study provider with the final Reserve 



Study due 90 days prior to the final budget date. The Reserve Contribution amount 

will be incorporated into GVR’s annual budget.  
  

GVR’s percent funded objective is not less than 85% and not greater than 100%.  

  

GVR shall annually make the Reserve Contribution to the Maintenance, Repair and 

Replacement Reserve Fund called for in the Annual Reserve Study.  

  

 

 

*Section V. Fiscal/Accounting  

  

Subsection 2, Item C, No. 2 – Reserve Contributions and the Annual Budget:  
  

Reserve Contributions to the Reserve Accounts shall be an integral part of the annual 

budget.  
  

The annual operating budget shall generate sufficient Excess Revenue Over Expenses 
to make the Reserve Contribution to the Maintenance, Repair and Replacement 
Reserve Fund called for in the Annual Reserve Study unless such Reserve Contribution  
generates a Percent Funded greater than 100% in which case the Reserve 
Contribution may be reduced to achieve a Percent Funded not less than 85%.  
  

The annual operating budget shall generate sufficient Excess Revenue-Over-Expenses 

to make the Reserve Contribution to the Maintenance, Repair and Replacement 

Reserve Fund called for in the Annual Reserve Study.  
  

*Section V. Fiscal/Accounting  

  

Subsection 2, Item E, No. 2 – Target Balance:  
  

This reserve shall be of sufficient size as to maintain a Percent Funded (as defined in 
the Reserve Study) of not less than 85% and not more than 100%.  
  

This reserve shall maintain a sufficient balance based on Annual Reserve Contributions 

calculated within the Annual Reserve Study.  

 

--------------------------------------------- 
  

MOTION: Approve the recommendation of the Fiscal Affairs Committee for 

changes to be made to the Corporate Policy Manual relative to Reserve 

Funding.  

 

  

  



G\lR 

APPENDIX GVR BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Insert Date a roved by Board 
INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

1. Introduction

In making investment decisions, the Green Valley Recreation (GVR) Board of Directors (the

"Board"), Investments Committee, GVR's Chief Executive officer (the "CEO") and Chief Financial 

officer (the "CFO") and GVR's financial advisor(s), if any, shall act in good faith, with the care an 

ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances and in a 

manner they reasonably believe to be in the best interests of Green Valley Recreation, Inc. (the 

"GVR) and manage the assets of GVR in accordance v.rith the Arizona Prudent Investor Act (AZ Rev 

Stat§ 14-10901 et. seq.) and the Arizona Management of Institutional Funds Act (AZ Rev Stat§ 10-

11801 et. seq.) 

2. Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this Investment Policy Statement (the "IPS") is to provide a framework for ensuring 

that GVR investments are managed consistently with GVR's sho1t-term and long-term financial 

objectives. At the same time, this IPS is intended to provide for sufficient investment flexibility to 

adjust to operational and market changes. Section 5 includes the detailed investment strategy and 

financial objectives for each Fund 

The Investment funds include the following: 

a. Operating Cash Investments Account

b. Initiatives Reserve Fund (IRF)

c. Maintenance Repair/Replace Reserve Fund (MRF)

d. Emergency Reserve Fund (ERF)

This IPS applies to all investments of GVR's excess operating cash and Reserve Funds and 

supersedes Appendix Subsection 3 of the GVR's Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) concerning 

investments. 

3. Definitions

Defined words used in this IPS are capitalized and written in Bold typeface. 

See Appendix A for definitions of defined words. 

1 of 10 





















 

 

 

 

Board of Directors 
September 30, 2020 

 
EXHIBIT 

 
Board Affairs Committee Approved 

September 10, 2020 
 
 

Recommendation for Changes to Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) 
Section IV. Facility Use 

 
 
Overview: 
After legal review by GVR Corporate Attorney Wendy Ehrlich, the Board Affairs 
Committee met on September 10, 2020, and approved recommendations for 
revisions to the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) Section IV. Facility Use.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
Board Affairs Committee recommends the Board of Directors amend the Corporate 
Policy Manual (CPM), Section IV. Facility Use, as follows:  
 
 
 
 



SECTION IV – FACILITY USE 
 
 
SUBSECTION 1.  GENERAL FACILITIES RULES AND REGULATIONS (updated 9/25/2018) 
 
A. GVR facilities are established for use and enjoyment of GVR members, eligible guests 
and visitors who abide by the GVR Member Code of Conduct. 
B. The use of facilities by nonmembers shall not interfere with the effectiveness of the 
recreation operation.   
C. Members, guests, and visitors who use GVR facilities and equipment, do so at their own 
risk, and shall indemnify and hold harmless GVR, its employees and agents.  
DB. All GVR facility reservations and arrangements shall be made through the central 
reservation office located at the Administrative Offices. A GVR Facility Reservation Agreement 
must be completed for all facility reservations and rentals. 5. An “indemnity clause” that 
has been reviewed and approved by GVR's legal counsel, MUST be included within the “Rental 
Agreement”. Any group, entity or individual that is not wholly comprised of GVR members 
utilizing a GVR facility MUST state their purpose and sign the “Rental Agreement”. This MUST 
be signed by a person or persons authorized to speak for the group, as part of the application 
process. 
 
EC. All members and guests are required to carry their membership cards or other 
authorized GVR identification while using GVR facilities. Individuals must produce GVR 
identification when requested by staff or any staff-authorized volunteer. Members and guests 
are required to sign-in or swipe their membership card.  Clubs and other authorized groups 
must provide an attendance roster or similar document which lists each person utilizing a GVR 
facility. 
FD. Staff and staff-authorized volunteers are empowered to enforce rules and regulations. 
GE. GVR member and nonmember individuals and groups may rent facilities subject to 
current rules, regulations, and fees. GVR members  individuals and groups have priority in 
facility rentals before over nonmembers individuals and groups. 
 
H. GVR member individuals and groups have priority in facility rentals before nonmember 
individuals and groups. 
I. The Chief Executive officer may authorize use of GVR facilities on a complimentary or 
fee basis for any GVR-sponsored, GVR co-sponsored, or GVR Foundation event or activity.  
Authorization of GVR Foundation activities are subject to terms of the GVR/GVR Foundation 
Resource Sharing Agreement (see APPENDIX I – BOARD POLICIES, Subsection 4). 
JF. GVR classes may preempt drop-in use of GVR facilities. 
K. Fees may be charged to recover the cost of any specialized services, events or programs.  
L. GVR facilities will not be used by any member for commercial purposes. Personal sales 
resulting from hobby pursuits are permitted. 
MG. Individual members, visitors, guests, and groups using or renting GVR facilities are 
responsible for maintaining those facilities in a neat and orderly condition. 



NH. Printed materials made available to attendees during the meeting/rental period must be 
removed at the end of the rental period. 
OI. Individuals who damage GVR equipment due to improper or careless use are 
responsible for the repair or replacement of that equipment. Members are responsible for 
damages caused by their guests. 
PJ. Special GVR shop/facility rules and regulations must be complied with by individual 
members, visitors, guests, and groups. 
KO. Non-member “Personal Assistants” may accompany a member to a GVR facility in order 
to help them with walking, showering, dressing or undressing, or with other non-therapeutic 
tasks as necessary and may not use GVR facilities for their own personal use.   
L.  GVR reserves the right to deny the use of its facilities by members or nonmembers for 
any of the following reasons as determined in the sole discretion of the CEO:  
 1. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group may advocate or 
promote an activity that is prohibited by local, state or federal law. 
 2. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group may advocate 
discrimination based on sex, age, race, ethnicity, nationality, disability, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, or religion.  
 3. There is a reasonable concern that use of facilities by an individual or group 
could lead to a civil disruption. 
 4. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group promotes a position 
that may be adverse to GVR.  
 5. There is a reasonable concern about other legal or safety issues. 
 
 
Q. No alcoholic beverages shall be sold on GVR premises without a valid special sales 
permit or liquor license. (See Section VIII, Subsection 4 for the complete Liquor Policy.)  
R. Non-member “Personal Assistants” may accompany a member to a GVR facility in order 
to help them with walking, showering, dressing or undressing, or with other non-therapeutic 
tasks as necessary and may not use GVR facilities for their own personal use.   
S. Animals are not permitted in or on GVR property, with the exception of Service animals, 
unless otherwise authorized by the GVR Chief Executive officer (CEO) to accommodate 
community events or other special circumstances. 
T. No firearms are allowed on your person on any GVR property or in any GVR facilities 
except law enforcement or licensed security. 
U. It is the policy of Green Valley Recreation, Inc. to provide and maintain a Drug-Free 
Environment for its members and employees. As such, Green Valley Recreation, Inc. prohibits 
the use of illegal drugs on GVR premises. 
V. GVR facility areas may be rented for political party meetings, campaign events, polling 
places, and informational presentations such as candidate forums or town hall meetings, 
subject to space availability and GVR fees at nonmember rates, regardless of GVR member 
affiliation. 
W. Advertising or promotional signage for non-GVR elected positions (e.g., public sector 
election campaigns), including solicitation of support/opposition regarding candidates or ballot 
issues is NOT permitted on GVR property except as follows: (1) within rented meeting space 



during the rental period; or (2) in public areas and parking lots of a GVR facility being used as a 
polling place on election day or as an early voting site during the period of early voting. 
 
SUBSECTION 2. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES. 
 
A. No alcoholic beverages shall be sold on GVR premises without a valid special sales 
permit or liquor license. (See Section VIII, Subsection 4 for the complete Liquor Policy.)  
B. Animals are not permitted in or on GVR property, with the exception of Service animals, 
unless otherwise authorized by the GVR Chief Executive officer (CEO) to accommodate 
community events or other special circumstances. 
C. No firearms are allowed on any GVR property or in any GVR facilities except law 
enforcement or licensed security. 
D. It is the policy of Green Valley Recreation, Inc. to provide and maintain a Drug-Free 
Environment for its members and employees. As such, Green Valley Recreation, Inc. prohibits 
the use of illegal drugs on GVR premises. 
E. Pursuant to the Smoke-Free Arizona Act (A.R.S.§36-601.01), GVR prohibits smoking in all 
indoor facilities and outside areas within 20 feet of all entrances and windows. Smoking is 
prohibited in pool areas and in all GVR vehicles. Smoking will be allowed in designated outdoor 
areas only. 
F. GVR prohibits vaping in all non-smoking areas, including in all indoor facilities and areas 
within 20 feet of all entrances and windows. Vaping is prohibited in pool areas and in all GVR 
vehicles. Vaping will be allowed in designated outdoor areas and wherever smoking is allowed. 
G. GVR facilities may not be used for commercial purposes. Personal sales resulting from 
hobby pursuits are permitted. 
 
 
 
SUBSECTION 2.  SPECIAL FACILITIES USAGE 
 
A. General Usage 
1. GVR facilities are provided for the use of GVR members and their guests. 
2. GVR reserves the right to deny access to GVR facilities by anyone (member or non-
member). Reasons for denial of use include, but may not be limited to the following: 
a. If there is a reasonable concern that the group may advocate or promote an activity that 
is prohibited by local, state or federal statute.  
b. It is determined that the group is involved in a discriminatory endeavor. 
c. There is a reasonable concern that appearance of the group could lead to a civil 
disruption. 
d. There are other legal or safety concerns. 
e. The CEO has the authority and discretion to make all final decisions 
3. The Chief Executive Officer may authorize the use of GVR facilities for any GVR 
sponsored event of community interest. 
4. GVR facilities may be used by any group, entity or individual that is not wholly 
comprised of GVR members, subject to appropriate rental agreements and fees. 



5. An “indemnity clause” that has been reviewed and approved by GVR's legal counsel, 
MUST be included within the “Rental Agreement”. Any group, entity or individual that is not 
wholly comprised of GVR members utilizing a GVR facility MUST state their purpose and sign 
the “Rental Agreement”. This MUST be signed by a person or persons authorized to speak for 
the group, as part of the application process. 
6. GVR classes may preempt drop-in use of GVR facilities. 
7. Use of meeting rooms must authorized in accordance with the established reservation 
procedure before occupancy. 
8. Non-member “personal assistants may accompany a member to a GVR facility in order 
to help them with walking, showering, dressing or undressing, or with other non-therapeutic 
tasks as necessary and may not use GVR facilities for the own personal use. 
 
SUBSECTION 3.  POLITICAL ACTIVITIES. 
 
A. GVR members may circulate petitions and/or solicit support or opposition of GVR 
candidates or ballot issues in GVR facility lobby areas, common areas, and parking lots as long 
as such activities do not interfere with GVR operations or facility reservations or violate fire 
code regulations as determined by GVR staff.  
B. Surveys, opinion polls and questionnaires related to GVR affairs, and distributed on GVR 
property, may be circulated by members only after being reviewed by GVR administration for 
accuracy and suitability. 
C. GVR facility areas may be rented for political party meetings, campaign events, polling 
places, and informational presentations such as candidate forums or town hall meetings, 
whether related to GVR elections or outside political causes, subject to space availability. 
D. Advertising or promotional signage for non-GVR elected positions (e.g., public sector 
election campaigns), including solicitation of support/opposition regarding candidates or ballot 
issues is NOT permitted on GVR property except as follows: (1) within rented meeting space 
during the rental period; or (2) in public areas and parking lots of a GVR facility being used as a 
polling place on election day or as an early voting site during the period of early voting. 
 
SUBSECTION 4.  SPECIAL USES. 
 
AB. Use of Hobby Shops and Studios 
These facilities are monitored by volunteers. When asked, members and guests must show 
their GVR membership or guest cards to use the facilities. Clubs have the right to restrict use of 
club facilities to club members only. 
 
BC. Use of Kitchens 
GVR kitchens are classified as catering kitchens. Food preparation and cooking is not allowed. 
Kitchen facilities may be used for warming pre-cooked food or for chilling cold entrées. 
 
 
CD. Use of Caterers 



Caterers must be registered and approved by GVR in order to work in GVR facilities. Contact the 
central reservation office located at the Administrative Offices for a current list of approved 
caterers. 
 
DE. Use of Storage 
1. GVR may provide small storage space, at no cost, to Clubs if space is available.   
2. Clubs may provide locks. 
3. GVR is not liable for any property lost, damaged or stolen while in storage. 
 
EF. Use of Equipment 
GVR may provide and maintain furniture and equipment in the facilities for the recreational use 
of its members. 
 
FG. GVR Pool Management Policies 
1. GVR offers heated swimming pools and spas for member use. 
2. Hours of operation are established and posted by GVR administration. 
3. GVR pools shall operate in compliance with Pima County Code Title 8, Chapter 8.322, 
“Swimming Pool and Spas,” and any other applicable Pima County regulations. 
4. The Pima County Health Department classifies GVR pools as “semi-public” per the 
following guidance: “A swimming pool on the premises of, or part of, but not limited to a hotel, 
motel, trailer court, apartment house, country club, camp, health club, condominium, 
homeowners association, or similar establishment where the primary business of the 
establishment is not the operation of the swimming facilities, and where admission to the use 
of the pool is included in the fee, or considerations paid or given for the primary use of the 
premises.” 
54. GVR staff has authority to close a swimming pool or spa if they determine that its 
operation and use presents danger to individuals.   
56. GVR follows the guidelines provided by the National Lightning Safety Institute (NLSI) to 
determine when to close indoor and outdoor swimming pools, spas and showers due to 
lightning as a safety precaution.  As of August 2014, NLSI guidelines state: 
a. Both outdoor and indoor pools and showers will be evacuated before or when lightning 
gets five miles away. 
b. At the first signs of thunder or lightning, all pool and shower activities will be suspended 
until 30 minutes after the last observed thunder or lightning.  (Adopted 08/26/14): 
 
SUBSECTION 5H. RENTALS AND FEESRentals and Fees 
A1. The Chief Executive officer will implement a Board-approved fee schedule for rental of 
GVR facilities. The CEO is authorized to waive facility rental fees in special circumstances, as 
deemed appropriate. 
B2. Rental fees for groups composed solely of GVR members shall be waived; however, all 
individuals and groups (whether member or nonmember) may be charged fees for special 
computer and technology setups; Internet connections; LED projection; special sound system or 
lighting requirements, overtime cleanup charges, or labor charges for special setup needs which 
require additional personnel. 



C3. GVR is interested in supporting community service events, and may rent its facilities on 
a fee basis for such events whenever it is practical to do so.  A community service event is 
normally sponsored by a non-profit organization or local government agency. GVR facilities are 
routinely used as polling facilities during elections.  
D.  The Chief Executive officer may authorize use of GVR facilities on a complimentary or 
fee basis for any GVR-sponsored, GVR co-sponsored, or GVR Foundation event or activity.  
Authorization of GVR Foundation activities are subject to terms of the GVR/GVR Foundation 
Resource Sharing Agreement (see APPENDIX I – BOARD POLICIES, Subsection 4). 
E. Fees may be charged to recover the cost of any specialized services, events or programs. 
 
 
I. GVR Property Rights 
GVR legal counsel has affirmed that GVR’s Bylaws do not provide members with the unlimited 
use of its facilities for any and all purposes, and that as a private property owner, ‘GVR may 
deny the use of its facilities to member and nonmember individuals and groups without 
abridging the freedom of speech and assembly granted by the Arizona Constitution.’ (GVR Legal 
Opinion, May 20, 2015) 
 
J. Denial of Use of GVR Facilities 
1. Based on GVR legal review and opinion, GVR reserves the right to deny the use of its 
facilities by member or nonmember individuals or groups whose purposes are deemed contrary 
or adverse to GVR’s as determined in the sole discretion of the CEO. 
2. A decision by the CEO to deny use of GVR facilities shall be based on one or more of the 
following conditions: 
a. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group may advocate or promote any 
activity that is prohibited by local, state or federal statute. 
b. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group is involved in discriminatory 
behavior based on sex, age, race, ethnicity, nationality, disability, sexual orientation, gender 
identity, religious and political opinions. 
c. There is a reasonable concern that use of facilities by an individual or group could lead 
to a civil disruption. 
d. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group promotes a position that may 
be detrimental to GVR.  
e. There is a reasonable concern about other legal or safety issues. 
K. Smoke-Free Zone at Facilities 
1. The Smoke-Free Arizona Act (ARS§36-601.01) requires GVR to establish a Smoke-Free 
zone at all facilities. The purpose of the Smoke-Free Arizona Act is to protect individuals from 
the harmful effects of second-hand smoke in enclosed public places. 
2. To comply with this law, GVR prohibits smoking in all non-smoking areas, including 
enclosed areas and areas within 20 feet of all entrances and windows. Smoking is prohibited in 
all indoor facility areas, pool areas and in all GVR vehicles. 
3. Smoking will be allowed in designated outdoor areas only. 
 
L. Vaping-Free Zone at Facilities – adopted 5/22/2019 



1. GVR prohibits vaping in all non-smoking areas, including enclosed areas and areas within 
20 feet of all entrances and windows. Vaping is prohibited in all indoor facility areas, pool areas 
and in all GVR vehicles. 
2. Vaping will be allowed in designated outdoor areas and wherever smoking is allowed. 
 
SUBSECTION 3.  CIRCULATION OF GVR-RELATED POLITICAL MATERIALS; GVR-RELATED SURVEYS, 
POLLS, QUESTIONNAIRES 
 
A. GVR petitions, solicitation of support or opposition regarding GVR candidates or ballot 
issues by GVR members shall only be permitted in GVR facility lobby areas, common areas, or 
curbsides and parking lots.  Further guidance may be found in the GVR Corporate Operations 
Manual. 
B. Surveys, opinion polls and questionnaires related to GVR affairs, and distributed on GVR 
property, may be circulated by members only after being reviewed by GVR administration for 
accuracy and suitability.V. GVR facility areas may be rented for political party meetings, 
campaign events, polling places, and informational presentations such as candidate forums or 
town hall meetings, subject to space availability and GVR fees at nonmember rates, regardless 
of GVR member affiliation. 
W. Advertising or promotional signage for non-GVR elected positions (e.g., public sector 
election campaigns), including solicitation of support/opposition regarding candidates or ballot 
issues is NOT permitted on GVR property except as follows: (1) within rented meeting space 
during the rental period; or (2) in public areas and parking lots of a GVR facility being used as a 
polling place on election day or as an early voting site during the period of early voting. 
 
 



SECTION IV – FACILITY USE 
 
 
SUBSECTION 1.  GENERAL FACILITIES RULES AND REGULATIONS  
A. GVR facilities are established for use and enjoyment of GVR members, eligible guests 
and visitors who abide by the GVR Member Code of Conduct. 
B. All GVR facility reservations and arrangements shall be made through the central 
reservation office located at the Administrative Offices. A GVR Facility Reservation Agreement 
must be completed for all facility reservations and rentals. Any group, entity or individual that is 
not wholly comprised of GVR members utilizing a GVR facility MUST state their purpose and 
sign the “Rental Agreement”. This MUST be signed by a person or persons authorized to speak 
for the group, as part of the application process. 
C. All members and guests are required to carry their membership cards or other 
authorized GVR identification while using GVR facilities. Individuals must produce GVR 
identification when requested by staff or any staff-authorized volunteer. Members and guests 
are required to sign-in or swipe their membership card.  Clubs and other authorized groups 
must provide an attendance roster or similar document which lists each person utilizing a GVR 
facility. 
D. Staff and staff-authorized volunteers are empowered to enforce rules and regulations. 
E. GVR member and nonmember individuals and groups may rent facilities subject to 
current rules, regulations, and fees. GVR members have priority in facility rentals over 
nonmembers. 
F. GVR classes may preempt drop-in use of GVR facilities. 
G. Individual members, visitors, guests, and groups using or renting GVR facilities are 
responsible for maintaining those facilities in a neat and orderly condition. 
H. Printed materials made available to attendees during the meeting/rental period must be 
removed at the end of the rental period. 
I. Individuals who damage GVR equipment due to improper or careless use are 
responsible for the repair or replacement of that equipment. Members are responsible for 
damages caused by their guests. 
J. Special GVR shop/facility rules and regulations must be complied with by individual 
members, visitors, guests, and groups. 
K. Non-member “Personal Assistants” may accompany a member to a GVR facility in order 
to help them with walking, showering, dressing or undressing, or with other non-therapeutic 
tasks as necessary and may not use GVR facilities for their own personal use.   
L.  GVR reserves the right to deny the use of its facilities by members or nonmembers for 
any of the following reasons as determined in the sole discretion of the CEO:  
 1. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group may advocate or 
promote an activity that is prohibited by local, state or federal law. 
 2. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group may advocate 
discrimination based on sex, age, race, ethnicity, nationality, disability, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, or religion.  
 3. There is a reasonable concern that use of facilities by an individual or group 
could lead to a civil disruption. 



 4. There is a reasonable concern that the individual or group promotes a position 
that may be adverse to GVR.  
 5. There is a reasonable concern about other legal or safety issues. 
 
 
SUBSECTION 2. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES. 
A. No alcoholic beverages shall be sold on GVR premises without a valid special sales 
permit or liquor license. (See Section VIII, Subsection 4 for the complete Liquor Policy.)  
B. Animals are not permitted in or on GVR property, with the exception of Service animals, 
unless otherwise authorized by the GVR Chief Executive officer (CEO) to accommodate 
community events or other special circumstances. 
C. No firearms are allowed on any GVR property or in any GVR facilities except law 
enforcement or licensed security. 
D. It is the policy of Green Valley Recreation, Inc. to provide and maintain a Drug-Free 
Environment for its members and employees. As such, Green Valley Recreation, Inc. prohibits 
the use of illegal drugs on GVR premises. 
E. Pursuant to the Smoke-Free Arizona Act (A.R.S.§36-601.01), GVR prohibits smoking in all 
indoor facilities and outside areas within 20 feet of all entrances and windows. Smoking is 
prohibited in pool areas and in all GVR vehicles. Smoking will be allowed in designated outdoor 
areas only. 
F. GVR prohibits vaping in all non-smoking areas, including in all indoor facilities and areas 
within 20 feet of all entrances and windows. Vaping is prohibited in pool areas and in all GVR 
vehicles. Vaping will be allowed in designated outdoor areas and wherever smoking is allowed. 
G. GVR facilities may not be used for commercial purposes. Personal sales resulting from 
hobby pursuits are permitted. 
 
 
SUBSECTION 3.  POLITICAL ACTIVITIES. 
A. GVR members may circulate petitions and/or solicit support or opposition of GVR 
candidates or ballot issues in GVR facility lobby areas, common areas, and parking lots as long 
as such activities do not interfere with GVR operations or facility reservations or violate fire 
code regulations as determined by GVR staff.  
B. Surveys, opinion polls and questionnaires related to GVR affairs, and distributed on GVR 
property, may be circulated by members only after being reviewed by GVR administration for 
accuracy and suitability. 
C. GVR facility areas may be rented for political party meetings, campaign events, polling 
places, and informational presentations such as candidate forums or town hall meetings, 
whether related to GVR elections or outside political causes, subject to space availability. 
D. Advertising or promotional signage for non-GVR elected positions (e.g., public sector 
election campaigns), including solicitation of support/opposition regarding candidates or ballot 
issues is NOT permitted on GVR property except as follows: (1) within rented meeting space 
during the rental period; or (2) in public areas and parking lots of a GVR facility being used as a 
polling place on election day or as an early voting site during the period of early voting. 
 



SUBSECTION 4.  SPECIAL USES. 
A. Use of Hobby Shops and Studios 
These facilities are monitored by volunteers. When asked, members and guests must show 
their GVR membership or guest cards to use the facilities. Clubs have the right to restrict use of 
club facilities to club members only. 
B. Use of Kitchens 
GVR kitchens are classified as catering kitchens. Food preparation and cooking is not allowed. 
Kitchen facilities may be used for warming pre-cooked food or for chilling cold entrées. 
C. Use of Caterers 
Caterers must be registered and approved by GVR in order to work in GVR facilities. Contact the 
central reservation office located at the Administrative Offices for a current list of approved 
caterers. 
D. Use of Storage 
 1. GVR may provide small storage space, at no cost, to Clubs if space is available.   
 2. Clubs may provide locks. 
 3. GVR is not liable for any property lost, damaged or stolen while in storage. 
E. Use of Equipment 
GVR may provide and maintain furniture and equipment in the facilities for the recreational use 
of its members. 
F. GVR Pool Management Policies 
 1. GVR offers heated swimming pools and spas for member use. 
 2. Hours of operation are established and posted by GVR administration. 
 3. GVR pools shall operate in compliance with Pima County Code Title 8, Chapter 
8.322, “Swimming Pool and Spas,” and any other applicable Pima County regulations. 
 4. GVR staff has authority to close a swimming pool or spa if they determine that its 
operation and use presents danger to individuals.   
 5. GVR follows the guidelines provided by the National Lightning Safety Institute 
(NLSI) to determine when to close indoor and outdoor swimming pools, spas and showers due 
to lightning as a safety precaution.  As of August 2014, NLSI guidelines state: 
  a. Both outdoor and indoor pools and showers will be evacuated before or 
when lightning gets five miles away. 
  b. At the first signs of thunder or lightning, all pool and shower activities will 
be suspended until 30 minutes after the last observed thunder or lightning.  (Adopted 
08/26/14): 
 
 
SUBSECTION 5. RENTALS AND FEES. 
A. The Chief Executive officer will implement a Board-approved fee schedule for rental of 
GVR facilities. The CEO is authorized to waive facility rental fees in special circumstances, as 
deemed appropriate. 
B. Rental fees for groups composed solely of GVR members shall be waived; however, all 
individuals and groups (whether member or nonmember) may be charged fees for special 
computer and technology setups; Internet connections; LED projection; special sound system or 



lighting requirements, overtime cleanup charges, or labor charges for special setup needs which 
require additional personnel. 
C. GVR is interested in supporting community service events, and may rent its facilities on 
a fee basis for such events whenever it is practical to do so.  A community service event is 
normally sponsored by a non-profit organization or local government agency.  
D.  The Chief Executive officer may authorize use of GVR facilities on a complimentary or 
fee basis for any GVR-sponsored, GVR co-sponsored, or GVR Foundation event or activity.  
Authorization of GVR Foundation activities are subject to terms of the GVR/GVR Foundation 
Resource Sharing Agreement (see APPENDIX I – BOARD POLICIES, Subsection 4). 
E. Fees may be charged to recover the cost of any specialized services, events or programs. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

Board of Directors 
September 30, 2020 

 

EXHIBIT 
 

Board Affairs Committee Approved 
September 10, 2020 

 
 

Recommendation for Changes to Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) to 
Indemnify Committee Members 

 
 
 
Overview: 
After legal review by GVR Corporate Attorney Wendy Ehrlich, the Board 
Affairs Committee met on September 10, 2020, and approved the 
recommendation to the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) Section IX. Risk 
Management, Subsection 3. 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Board Affairs Committee recommends the Board of Directors amend the 
Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) as follows: 
 

Add to Section IX. Risk Management, Subsection 3, the following: 
 
C. Committee Members. Committee members shall be listed as 
additional insureds on the directors and officers liability policy.  
  

 



 

 

 

 

Board of Directors 
September 30, 2020 

 
EXHIBIT 

 
Board Affairs Committee Approved 

September 10, 2020 
 
 

Recommendation for Changes to Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) 
Composition of Committees 

 
 
Overview: 
After legal review by GVR Corporate Attorney Wendy Ehrlich, the Board Affairs 
Committee met on September 10, 2020, and approved recommendations for 
revisions to the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) Section VI. BOARD/BOARD 
COMMITTEES.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
Board Affairs Committee recommends the Board of Directors amend the Corporate 
Policy Manual (CPM) as follows: 
 
Section VI. BOARD/BOARD COMMITTEES 
Subsection 4. BOARD COMMITTEES’ DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
B. Committees of the Board of Directors  
 
 
 
 



B. Committees of The Board of Directors (updated May 22, 2018) 
1. Standing Committee Chairpersons shall be Directors, appointed by 

the Board President. Ad Hoc and Special Committee Chairpersons 
shall be appointed by the President, but need not be Directors. All 
Chairpersons must be approved by the Board. 
Standing and Special/Ad Hoc Committee Chairpersons must be 
Directors. Chairpersons shall be nominated by the President, subject 
to approval of the Board. 

2. The Board will establish the duties and responsibilities of the 
committees. Each committee shall make policy recommendations to 
the Board for consideration. 

3. Committee meetings will normally be open to all GVR members, but 
may be held in closed session, at the discretion of the committee or 
subcommittee chairperson. 

4. The President may establish special or ad hoc committees comprised 
of members/assigned members in good standing, Directors and 
Administrative Staff. 

5. Committees are not required to follow Robert’s Rules of Order. 
6. Meetings shall be set by the Chairperson and shall be conducted as 

needed, but not less than quarterly. 
7.  At least one other committee member shall be a Director of the 

Board. Committee members shall be GVR members in good 
standing, appointed by the Chairperson, and staff members selected 
by  the  Chief  Executive  Officer.  To  the  extent  possible, 
committees will include members knowledgeable about the 
functionality of that specific committee. 

8. Directors may attend any GVR committee meeting, whether open or 
closed. To attend a meeting from a remote site, a request shall be 
made by email to the committee chairperson at least three business 
days prior to the meeting. Directors will be provided with all 
materials otherwise provided to committee members. 



B. Committees of The Board of Directors  
1. Standing and Special/Ad Hoc Committee Chairpersons must be 

Directors. Chairpersons shall be nominated by the President, subject 
to approval of the Board. 

2. The Board will establish the duties and responsibilities of the 
committees. Each committee shall make policy recommendations to 
the Board for consideration.              

3. Committee meetings will normally be open to all GVR members, but 
may be held in closed session, at the discretion of the committee or 
subcommittee chairperson. 

4. The President may establish special or ad hoc committees comprised 
of members/assigned members in good standing, Directors and 
Administrative Staff.   

5. Committees are not required to follow Robert’s Rules of Order. 
6. Meetings shall be set by the Chairperson and shall be conducted as 

needed, but not less than quarterly. 
7. Committee members shall be GVR members in good standing, 

appointed by the Chairperson, and staff members selected by the 
Chief Executive officer. To the extent possible, committees will 
include members knowledgeable about the functionality of that 
specific committee. 

8. Directors may attend any GVR committee meeting, whether open or 
closed. To attend a meeting from a remote site, a request shall be 
made by email to the committee chairperson at least three business 
days prior to the meeting. Directors will be provided with all 
materials otherwise provided to committee members. 

 



 

 

 

Board of Directors 
September 30, 2020 

 
EXHIBIT 

 
Board Affairs Committee Approved 

September 10, 2020 
 

Recommendation for Corporate Policy Manual Changes Legal Review 
 
 
Overview: 
The purpose of the Motion is to streamline the process of making changes to the CPM. The 
current practice is for committees to draft their own proposed CPM changes which are 
then forwarded to legal counsel for review, comment and revision. GVR’s counsel has 
repeatedly told the BAC that this is not a cost-effective process, as it often requires her to 
perform additional work explaining why certain changes are problematic (inconsistent with 
the Bylaws or Arizona law, or are vague and ambiguous) and then revising the proposed 
changes to address those issues. 
  
The time the attorney spends (and hence, the attorney’s fees incurred by GVR) would be 
greatly reduced if committees simply provided her with an explanation of the change the 
committee would like to make, and the reason for the change. This will allow her to use 
her time (and expertise) solely for the purpose of drafting the proposed language. The 
time saved by this process will also allow her to determine whether there are other 
provisions in that particular CPM section that should be simultaneously revised, in 
furtherance of the BAC’s ultimate goal of ensuring that all of the CPM’s provisions are well-
drafted and consistent with GVR’s Bylaws and Arizona law. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Board Affairs Committee (BAC) recommends the Board of Directors accept the following 
procedure for all CPM changes and include this language with BAC Committee charge in 
CPM:  
 
If a committee wishes to make changes to the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM): 
a. The committee will provide a paragraph stating the purpose and goal of the 

proposed changes to the Board Affairs Committee (BAC).  
 
b. If the BAC approves the purpose and intent, BAC will forward to GVR’s legal 

counsel to draft changes.  
 
c. The draft changes will be presented to BAC and the committee submitting 

the request.  
 

d. If approved by both the BAC and the committee, the draft will be forwarded as 
a recommendation to GVR Board of Directors for approval.  



Selected Readings on Volunteerism For GVR 
Compiled by Mark Kelley 
September, 2020 

Three articles with slightly varying views on the topic of volunteers in not for 
profit organization follow. This is being presented to provide background in 
discussion of a volunteerism policy within the GVR Policy Governance 
manual. 

 

 

 

Employee or Volunteer: What’s the 
Difference? 
By Melanie Lockwood Herman 

Nonprofit organizations frequently depend on the service and commitment of 
volunteers as well as the labor of employees. The skills and talents of both types of 
workers bring nonprofit missions to life. At first glance, the simple difference 
between these two types of workers is that employees get paid and volunteers don’t. 
Yet many nonprofit leaders have discovered that there is more to distinguishing 
between employees and volunteers than whether an individual receives a regular 
paycheck. This article explores two subtopics under the umbrella issue of employee 
versus volunteer status: whether employees may also volunteer, and the 
consequences of compensating volunteers. 

When Employees Also Volunteer 
May your nonprofit’s paid employees also serve as unpaid volunteers? Each year 
the NRMC team receives numerous calls and email messages from leaders who tell 
us that their dedicated, paid staff are eager to volunteer in the evenings and on 
weekends. In some cases these willing staff volunteer to work “off the clock,” while 
in other instances they sign up or formally apply for volunteer roles, such as 
volunteer ticket takers, coaches or special event staff, or as volunteer mentors in the 
nonprofit’s mentoring program. But we also receive calls from employees who want 
to know whether they can be forced to “volunteer” and on occasion from employees 



who are indignant after having been told that they cannot volunteer their services in 
the agency where they are employed. 

At the time the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) was revised in 1985, Congress 
stated its desire to prevent any manipulation or abuse of minimum wage or overtime 
requirements through coercion or undue pressure upon individuals to ‘volunteer’ 
their services. Yet the Department of Labor’s Wage and Hour Division has 
recognized that a volunteer in a religious, charitable, civic, humanitarian or similar 
nonprofit is not subject to the FLSA. Volunteers may work for nonprofits without 
expectation of compensation, and nonprofits are free to recruit and retain true 
volunteers without undue worry about the risk of wage and hour claims. 

According to the Department of Labor, a volunteer is: an “individual who performs 
hours of service’ for civic, charitable, or humanitarian reasons, without promise, 
expectation or receipt of compensation for services rendered. To determine whether 
an individual is a true volunteer engaged in “ordinary volunteerism,” the Department 
of Labor considers a number of factors. No single factor is determinative. The 
factors include: 

• Is the entity that will benefit/receive services from the volunteer a nonprofit 
organization? 

• Is the activity less than a full-time occupation? 

• Are the services offered freely and without pressure or coercion? 

• Are the services of the kind typically associated with volunteer work? 

• Have regular employees been displaced to accommodate the volunteer? 

• Does the worker receive (or expect) any benefit from the entity to which it is 
providing services? 

A volunteer position at your nonprofit is likely to be regarded as “ordinary 
volunteerism” and safely exempt from the minimum wage requirements of the FLSA 
if you can answer “yes” to the first four questions and “no” to the final two questions. 

Risk Management Tips 
If your nonprofit engages both paid personnel and unpaid volunteers and paid 
employees are eligible to volunteer, consider the following tips to increase the safety 
of your HR and volunteer management practices. 

• Put it in Writing — An important step in distinguishing between your 
employees and volunteers is to document the distinct roles that each group of 
workers plays in the organization. First, make certain that you have written job 
descriptions for each paid role in your nonprofit. A job description should 



contain information on the employee’s classification and status (e.g., 
regular/non-exempt/part-time or temporary/full-time/exempt, etc.), education 
and other requirements, as well as specific job duties. Volunteer roles should 
be defined in position descriptions or volunteer agreements that emphasize 
volunteer status and make it clear that no compensation will be provided. A 
Volunteer Agreement is especially helpful when the volunteer is also an 
employee, because it requires both the nonprofit and the volunteer to agree 
and acknowledge that volunteer service is separate from employment and 
that the willingness to volunteer will have no impact on the terms of a 
volunteer’s employment with the agency. 

• Document Policies in Separate Manuals — While the NRMC team 
recognizes the desire to economize in developing policies, we believe it is 
inappropriate and risky to consolidate policies for employees and volunteers 
in a single handbook or manual. An Employee Handbook or Personnel 
Policies Manual should be developed and distributed to employees only. A 
Volunteer Handbook or Volunteer Policies Manual should be developed for 
your volunteer workforce. The overlap in policies should be minimal, such as 
those related to safety matters. Employees who also volunteer should be 
instructed that their volunteer service is governed by the policies in the 
Volunteer Handbook, and that their paid service is governed by the policies in 
the Employee Handbook. An employee who volunteers should have a job 
description and a Volunteer Agreement. 

• Never Ignore “Off the Clock” Service — Employers who look the other way 
when nonexempt workers “volunteer” after hours expose their nonprofits to 
costly wage and hour claims. The nonexempt employee who is content to 
volunteer today could be an aggrieved plaintiff demanding unpaid wages and 
penalties six months from now. Keep in mind that it is the employer’s duty (not 
the employee’s!) to keep track of the hours worked by nonexempt employees 
and to ensure that compensation practices are FLSA compliant. Exempt 
employees are expected to work the hours required to perform their jobs. 
Most exempt employee schedules include occasional long days and extended 
work weeks. The additional time spent beyond a customary eight-hour day or 
40-hour work week is generally part of the job, and not “volunteer” service to 
the agency. If, however, an exempt worker seeks a formal volunteer role in 
the nonprofit he or she should be required to follow the proper channels and 
should be subject to the rules and supervision associated with that volunteer 
role. 

• Never Coerce Employees to Volunteer — An employee who feels coerced 
to “volunteer” after regular work hours is a wage and hour claim waiting to 
happen. No individual—whether they are on your payroll or not—should be 
coerced to volunteer their time for your nonprofit. Make certain that all 
supervisors at your organization are aware of the distinction between 
employee and volunteer status, and that they understand that strong-arming 



employees to work without pay is a violation of policy that may subject the 
supervisor to discipline. 

• Remember the Volunteer Service Rule of Three — “True” volunteers are 
those who: (1) work toward public service, religious, or humanitarian 
objectives; (2) do not expect or receive compensation for services; and (3) do 
not displace any genuine employees. 

Can We Pay Our Volunteers?! 
Many nonprofit organizations offer some monetary benefit to their volunteers, such 
as stipends, reimbursement for out of pocket expenses, discounts on services, and 
so forth. “Bona fide” volunteers are those whose compensation is limited to 
reimbursement for expenses, reasonable benefits and/or nominal fees for services. 

There are at least two key issues that arise when volunteers receive payment or 
benefits from the nonprofit organizations they serve. The first issue is whether the 
payments or benefits are taxable compensation. The second issue is whether 
payments to a volunteer jeopardize the worker’s volunteer status. 

Taxation of Benefits Provided to Volunteers 

In general, a nonprofit employer must treat payments to volunteers the same as 
payments to employees, which means that income tax and FICA contributions must 
be withheld. (See 26 U.S.C. § 3402). Living allowances, stipends and in-kind 
benefits should generally be treated like wages. 

Inexpensive items (e.g., a coffee cup, t-shirt, or admission to an event where the 
volunteer is representing the organization) may be excluded from reportable, taxable 
income as de minimis fringe benefits (See Internal Revenue Code section 132(a)(4). 
Additional examples include holiday gifts, light refreshments, occasional personal 
use of the nonprofit’s office equipment, occasional tickets for entertainment events, 
and personal use of a cell phone provided primarily for the nonprofit’s business. The 
more expensive the item or the more frequent its use, the less likely it is to qualify 
as de minimis benefit. Keep in mind that a de minimis fringe benefit should never be 
a form of disguised compensation. But, except as specifically provided (i.e., 
occasional meal money or local transportation fare and reimbursements for public 
transit passes), a cash fringe benefit (including a gift card) is not excludable as a de 
minimis fringe benefit. See Regulations §1.132-6(c). For more information on cell 
phones as taxable benefits, visit: http://www.irs.gov/irb/2011-38_IRB/ar07.html. 

In-kind benefits that do not qualify for a tax exemption must be assigned a dollar 
value for tax purposes. Your nonprofit is responsible for determining the fair market 
value of the goods it distributes to volunteers and for withholding the tax from a 
volunteer’s stipend or other income provided. Generally, the fair market value of a 
benefit is the amount an individual would have to pay for the item at a local store or 

http://www.irs.gov/irb/2011-38_IRB/ar07.html


restaurant. Reimbursements to volunteers are taxable to the same extent as 
reimbursements to employees. Only if the expense qualifies as a tax deduction for 
an employee does the volunteer also avoid tax liability. Thus, reimbursement for a 
volunteer’s purchase of a uniform, required for program participation, would not be 
considered part of taxable income. 

Jeopardizing Volunteer Status 

A second issue is whether the payment of a fee, stipend or valuable benefits 
jeopardizes the legal status of a volunteer. The unwitting conversion of a volunteer 
to employee status has potential negative consequences for the employer as well as 
the volunteer. In contrast with their volunteer counterparts, employees are subject to 
various forms of legal protection, such as the guarantee of a minimum wage under 
the federal and state wage and hour laws, and protection from illegal discrimination 
under Title VII. Nonprofit employers should therefore proceed with care when 
determining the benefits that will be provided to volunteer workers. 

Short of changing a volunteer’s status to that of employee, payments to volunteers 
can also lead to a loss of legal protection for the volunteer. The Volunteer Protection 
Act specifically protects a volunteer who: (1) performs services; (2) for a nonprofit 
organization or governmental entity; and (3) either (a) receives no compensation 
(although reasonable reimbursement for expenses incurred is allowed), or (b) does 
not receive anything of value in lieu of compensation in excess of $500 per year. 
Therefore a “volunteer” who receives a stipend of $50 per month, or $600 annually, 
is not protected under the VPA. 

What is Nominal Compensation? 

While there is no clear-cut guidance on what constitutes “nominal compensation” to 
a volunteer, 29 C.F.R. § 553.106(e) provides that “a fee is not nominal if it is a 
substitute for compensation or tied to productivity.” In addition, Section 553.106(f) of 
FLSA regulations provides that “determining whether the expenses, benefits, or fees 
would preclude an individual from qualifying as a volunteer under the FLSA requires 
examining the total amount of payments in the context of the economic realities of a 
particular situation.” DOL’s Wage and Hour Division presumes that fees paid to 
volunteers are nominal as long as the fee does not exceed twenty percent of what 
an employer would otherwise pay to hire a full-time employee for the same services. 
See Wage and Hour Opinion Letters FLSA2006-28 (Aug. 7, 2006) and FLSA2005-
51. 

In a wage and hour case involving a volunteer school golf coach (who also served 
as a paid safety and security assistant for the same school system), both a U.S. 
District Court and the 4th Circuit Court of Appeals found that the coaching role was 
properly classified as a volunteer position. In its ruling the District Court held that the 
coaching role was different from the plaintiff’s paid position, and that a stipend of 
$2,114 was nominal. The 4th Circuit Court also appeared to be swayed by the 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/opinion/FLSA/2006/2006_08_07_28_FLSA.pdf


plaintiff’s decision to choose the volunteer coaching role over a part-time paid 
position due to the satisfaction he derived from his volunteer role. (Source: Purdham 
v. Fairfax County School Board, 4th Cir., No. 10-1048, March 10, 2011.) 

Risk Management Tips 
• Proceed with Care When Paying Volunteers — Remember that the 

definition of volunteer is grounded in the idea of service without contemplation 
of pay. Keep in mind that paying your volunteers “a little something” could 
have negative consequences for your nonprofit (e.g., exposure to wage and 
hour claims, extension of protection under civil rights laws, etc.) and negative 
consequences to your volunteers (e.g., loss of protection under the Volunteer 
Protection Act). 

• Never Offer Benefits Tied to Hours of Work — Paying volunteers in 
accordance with their hours of work may be regarded as a “substitute for 
compensation” and inadvertently convert volunteers to employees. A key 
factor in determining whether payments to a volunteer are a substitute for 
compensation is “whether the amount of the fee varies as the particular 
individual spends more or less time engaged in the volunteer activities.” (See 
Wage and Hour Opinion Letter FLSA 2005-51). 

• Never Base Classification Solely on the Nonprofit’s Ability to Pay— The 
classification of a position as a volunteer role versus a paid employee role in a 
nonprofit should be based on a number of factors, and never solely on 
whether funds are available to pay the worker. Generally, volunteer roles are 
those that: 

o do not require the worker to follow a consistent, full-time schedule; 
o are required on an “as needed” basis throughout the year, versus a 

fixed number of hours on a regular basis; 
o vary depending on the programs and services of the nonprofit (e.g., 

special events, seasonal work, etc.); and 
o are dissimilar in scope, requirements and expectations from paid 

positions in the organization. 
Melanie Lockwood Herman is Executive Director of the Nonprofit Risk Management 
Center. She welcomes your feedback on this article and questions about NRMC 
resources at Melanie@nonprofitrisk.org or 703.777.3504. 

 

 

 

 

mailto:Melanie@nonprofitrisk.org


Nonprofits Replacing Staff With Volunteers 
The pros and cons of cutting paid staff positions 

BY  
JOANNE FRITZ 
Updated October 03, 2019 

It is very tempting in tough times to cut paid staff positions and turn those positions into 
volunteer ones. Using volunteers to perform tasks or jobs that might otherwise be done 
by paid staff—often called job substitution—should only be part of an overall strategy for 
reducing costs during hard times. 

But is it right? Does it work? What are the pitfalls or benefits? Here are some tips for 
doing it right: 

Don't Lay Off Staff Intending to Substitute a Volunteer 

If you lay off paid staff to bring on a volunteer you could cause problems for yourself. 
Such action is bound to cause other paid staff to fear for their positions and to resent 
and resist working with volunteers, fearing they might take their jobs. 

However, when there is natural attrition or a general reorganization, use that opportunity 
to rethink how your organization is set up. Think about how you might reconfigure jobs 
so that some duties could be done by volunteers. 

For instance, you have just promoted your receptionist to an administrative assistant 
position working with the development director. This leaves the receptionist job open. 
Perhaps a volunteer could cover those duties. 

Some organizations may opt to limit the hours they are open to the public to five per day 
(10 a.m.- 3 p.m.) and use volunteers to handle the front desk. They have a different 
volunteer each day. That volunteer answers the phone, greets visitors, and performs an 
assortment of well-defined and documented clerical duties. At the end of the day, the 

https://www.thebalancesmb.com/joanne-fritz-2501575
https://www.thebalancesmb.com/what-to-do-before-volunteers-walk-in-the-door-2502589


volunteer uses a form to summarize the important things that occurred that day and any 
problems that may need to be resolved by the following day's volunteer. 

This approach may work for an organization that has most of the bugs worked out, and 
if the volunteers are happy and loyal. Also, you would need enough trained volunteers 
to have a couple of additional volunteers in the office who take care of other office 
tasks, helping the organization even more. 

Don't Use Volunteers for the Routine Tasks 

Many volunteers are happy to do clerical work, get mailings out of the door, or run 
errands. However, whenever there is a task that your staff would really like to do but 
don't have the time to undertake, think about using a volunteer. 

A volunteer could act as a volunteer coordinator, help write grants or research grant 
resources. They can be responsible for a newsletter, train other volunteers or even the 
staff, plan and implement special events, or a host of other things. Think creatively and 
look for volunteers that have special talents or experience. 

Consider Finding and Using "Skilled" Volunteers 

Skilled volunteers are usually specialists in those areas that a nonprofit is not. Such 
areas include finance, human resources, and marketing. These skilled volunteers are 
often employees at corporations. As part of their employer's corporate social 
responsibility program, they are given time by their corporations to spend time working 
with nonprofits. 

There are also skilled volunteers in between jobs who might be very interested in 
keeping their skills sharp and adding to their resumes. 

Skilled volunteers cannot replace staff, but they can replace expensive outsourcing and 
outside consultants. They can help you reorganize, conduct an organizational audit, 
develop that data needed to help the board make organizational decisions, find ways to 

https://www.thebalancesmb.com/making-volunteers-happy-2502612
https://www.thebalancesmb.com/email-newsletters-that-make-people-want-to-give-2502406
https://www.thebalancesmb.com/corporate-programs-help-nonprofits-2502073
https://www.thebalancesmb.com/corporate-programs-help-nonprofits-2502073


save money on essential services or help staff focus on what is most important in their 
jobs. 

Many nonprofits don't use skilled volunteers—also called pro bono work—as often as 
they should. Ask your local corporate foundations if they have a skilled volunteer 
program, or apply for a pro bono grant through the Taproot Foundation. 

The Corporation for National & Community Service has a toolkit to help nonprofits get 
ready to use skills-based volunteers. You can also post your openings for volunteers 
with professional skills at Catchafire, an online matching service. 

Don't Tolerate a Caste System in Your Office 

In some nonprofit offices, there are paid managers or staff who go out to lunch daily, 
while the clerical staff and volunteers ate egg salad sandwiches in the break room, 
meanwhile holding down the fort until the managers returned. What a way to make 
clerical staff and volunteers feel like second-class citizens. Find ways to be inclusive 
and make everyone feel that they are vital to something very important. 

Act Quickly When They Show Interest 

Volunteers have lots of opportunities in many organizations. Act quickly when they show 
an interest in yours, or they will go somewhere else. It is common for potential 
volunteers to receive poor vetting by nonprofit organizations. Either the volunteer 
manager is tone-deaf to what the volunteer says about their amount of time available 
(feeling overwhelmed is as frequent a reason for volunteer flight as feeling 
underutilized), or the volunteer receives a superficial interview that does not uncover 
abilities and experiences that could be clues to settling the volunteer into a rewarding 
situation. 

Keep an Open Mind 

Yes, you might have a list of basic roles that you are always shopping for, but when 
your interview reveals other possibilities, don't be bound by precedent and rules. Don't 

https://www.nationalservice.gov/resources/member-and-volunteer-development/sbv
https://www.thebalancesmb.com/volunteer-management-strategies-for-your-nonprofit-4174396
https://www.thebalancesmb.com/volunteer-management-strategies-for-your-nonprofit-4174396


hesitate to create a volunteer job that fits that particular person, their talents, and 
interests. You might be able to relieve a paid staff member of some task and shift it to a 
volunteer. That should allow your paid staff the time to spend time on other pressing 
duties. It should never, however, expose a paid staff person to possible job loss. 

The bottom line is that it is to no one's benefit to cut costs by deliberately cutting staff 
and replacing them with volunteers, but there may be creative ways to enable 
volunteers to fill some roles if you do it wisely. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Is Your Volunteer Really an Employee? 
The Answer Might Surprise You 
By Franczek Radelet on February 3, 2015 

In our last post, we looked at the rules governing volunteers at for-profit entities. As we 
discussed, for-profit organizations have almost no latitude to accept volunteer services. 
However, nonprofit employers face a more relaxed regulatory scheme under the FLSA 
when it comes to volunteers. Unlike their for-profit brethren, nonprofit employers can 
accept volunteer services without running afoul of the FLSA’s minimum wage and 
overtime requirements. The FLSA regulations contain an exception for individuals who 
undertake volunteer activities for their own “personal, civic, charitable, humanitarian, 
religious, or public service reasons.” 

To this end, the DOL has recognized that “ordinary volunteerism” to religious, 
charitable, and nonprofit organizations and schools does not create an employment 
relationship. Truly volunteer services come without the expectation of compensation in 
cash or in-kind benefits and are given freely without coercion. In addition to ensuring 
that individuals are truly volunteering, the DOL and federal courts look to: 

1. The nature of the entity receiving the services 

2. The character of the services themselves 

3. The amount of control the employer exerts over the volunteer 

4. Compensation or benefits provided to the individual, or that the individual expects 

5. Whether the volunteer work displaces paid work by regular employees 

The first factor examines what the volunteers do. For instance, “volunteers” who operate 
a nonprofit’s business selling goods or services to the public, such as a resale shop or a 
restaurant may not qualify as volunteers because of their direct participation in 
commerce. The DOL and courts are more likely to find individuals in a non-sales role, 
such as docents providing information at a nonprofit hospital or servers passing out free 
food at a homeless shelter, to be volunteers. 

https://www.wagehourinsights.com/author/franczekradelet/
https://www.wagehourinsights.com/exemptions/is-your-volunteer-really-an-employee-the-answer-might-surprise-you-part-1/


For the same reason, a person who already performs the same or related services for a 
nonprofit on a paid basis cannot perform those services on a volunteer basis at any 
time, whether during or outside regular working hours. Similarly, a person who receives 
significant gifts or monetary stipends to perform work (even if less than minimum wage) 
is more likely to be an employee than a volunteer. 

Just as with independent contractors, the third factor looks to the amount of control an 
employer exerts over a volunteer. A nonprofit that gives a worker a part-time schedule 
with no set hours can more easily establish that the person is a volunteer, all other 
things being equal. The DOL and courts are more likely to find a nonprofit that gives a 
“volunteer” regularly scheduled, full-time hours or that requires “volunteers” to get 
approval to change or miss shifts has employees, not volunteers. In general, the DOL’s 
past FLSA decisions have held that the more restrictions nonprofit employers put 
on volunteers, the more likely those employees would be deemed employees. 

The flipside of restrictions is benefits, and both of the last two factors work the way you 
would expect. First, nonprofit volunteers should be just that—volunteers of their time 
without payment. Nonprofits that pay employees regular and significant amounts, 
whether described as wages, barters, stipends, allowances or something else make 
volunteers look more like employees, even if the payments amount to less than 
minimum wage. 

Finally, a paid employee can never provide the same or similar services to a nonprofit 
as a volunteer, regardless of whether the “volunteer” services come during regular 
working hours or outside of them. Similarly, a “volunteer” cannot provide the same or 
similar services to your nonprofit organization as your regular employees do: those 
volunteers are simply employees. 

As we said in our last post, no single factor is determinative here. The unique facts of 
your situation weighed against the factors above will determine the outcome. Whenever 
you consider taking on a volunteer, consider all of the circumstances before accepting 
their services and get some good wage and hour legal advice first! 

 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/opinion/FLSA/2006/2006_01_27_04_FLSA.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/whd/opinion/FLSA/2006/2006_01_27_04_FLSA.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/whd/opinion/FLSA/2001/2001_07_31_18_FLSA.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/whd/opinion/FLSA/2001/2001_07_31_18_FLSA.pdf

	09302020 Meeting Book.pdf
	09302020 Meeting Book.pdf
	2. 09302020 BOD Agenda
	3.A. 08262020 BOD Minutes - Draft
	3.B. 09162020 BOD Special Meeting Minutes - Draft
	3.C. August 2020 Financial Statements

	PG Manual Change.pdf

	AO Buildout.pdf
	reserve funding exhibit for 9.30.2020.pdf
	09302020 Meeting Book
	09302020 Meeting Book
	5.A.1. Exhibit - FAC - AO Buildout 09302020
	5.A.2. Exhibit - FAC - Reserve Funding 09302020
	*Section V. Fiscal/Accounting
	*Section V. Fiscal/Accounting
	*Section V. Fiscal/Accounting

	5.B.1. Exhibit - IC - IPS Full V Suggested Updates 09302020
	5.C.1.a. BAC EXHIBIT - CPM Changes - Sec IV Facility Use
	1 - Exhibit - CPM Changes - Facility Use - 09302020
	2 - 1st Draft Blackline - ATTY REVISIONS TO CPM FACILITY USE_
	3 - ATTY REVISIONS TO CPM FACILITY USE - CLEAN COPY

	5.C.1.b. BAC EXHIBIT - CPM Changes - Indemnification
	5.C.1.c. BAC EXHIBIT - CPM Sec VI Composition of Committees
	A - Exhibit - CPM Revisions - Composition of Committees - 09302020
	B - CPM Revisions - Composition of Committees - REDLINE
	C - CPM Revisions - Composition of Committees CLEAN COPY
	B. Committees of The Board of Directors


	5.C.1.d. BAC EXHIBIT - CPM Changes - Legal Review - 09302020
	6.A. Exhibit - Volunteerism Readings 09302020
	Selected Readings on Volunteerism For GVR
	Three articles with slightly varying views on the topic of volunteers in not for profit organization follow. This is being presented to provide background in discussion of a volunteerism policy within the GVR Policy Governance manual.
	Employee or Volunteer: What’s the Difference?
	When Employees Also Volunteer
	Risk Management Tips
	Can We Pay Our Volunteers?!
	Risk Management Tips

	Nonprofits Replacing Staff With Volunteers
	The pros and cons of cutting paid staff positions
	Don't Lay Off Staff Intending to Substitute a Volunteer
	Don't Use Volunteers for the Routine Tasks
	Consider Finding and Using "Skilled" Volunteers
	Don't Tolerate a Caste System in Your Office
	Act Quickly When They Show Interest
	Keep an Open Mind

	Is Your Volunteer Really an Employee? The Answer Might Surprise You






